
 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Agenda 

Monday, January 10, 2022 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Participation 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. November 8, 2021 Regular Meeting 

b. December 6, 2021 Called Meeting 

 

Reports I 
4. Operations Report presented by ESG, Inc. 

 

New Business 
5. Welcome New Member - Mr. Ed Walker 

6. Approval to close Payroll Account 

7. Approval of Resolution to Terminate 401 and 457 Contribution Plan 

 

Old Business 
None 

 

Reports II 
8. Plant Production Reports 

9. Financial Reports 

 

Closing 
10. Next Meeting - March 14, 2022 

11. Adjournment 

Sinclair Water 

1



File Attachments for Item:

3. Approval of Minutes

a. November 8, 2021 Regular Meeting

b. December 6, 2021 Called Meeting

2



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 4  

November 8, 2021   

 

 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Minutes 

Monday, November 8, 2021 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, November 8, 2021 at approximately 5:00 PM at 

the Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Robert Brown 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Tommy Jefferson 

Member David Waddell 

Member Billy Webster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Andrew Paracca 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 

2. Public Participation 

None 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. September 13, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Motion to approve the September 13, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

b. October 19, 2021 Called Meeting 

Motion to approve the October 19, 2021 Called Meeting Minutes. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

 

 

Sinclair Water 

3



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 4  

November 8, 2021   

 

Reports I 
4. Manager's Report 

Plant Manager Paracca reporting the following: 

 Membrane performance 

 Update on NPDES Permit and testing procedures 

 Clean in Place chemical room improvements 

 Main plant compressor update 

 Raw Water Intake compressor update 

 CC&A update 

 ARPA Grant application has been submitted 

 Long Term Projects 

 GovDeals 

 Update on Cyber Security 

 Alum Sludge 

 Depreciation itemization 

 2021 Polaris Ranger has been purchased 

 Temporary Plant Management 

 Vacation 

 Advising Fee 

(Copy of report made a part of the minutes.) 

 

New Business 
5. Approval of 2022 Meeting Calendar 

Motion to approve the 2022 SWA Meeting Calendar. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of calendar made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Member Hall announced that Mr. Ed Walker had been appointed by the Baldwin County Board 

of Commissioners to fill Member Waddell's expired term beginning on January 1, 2022. 

 

6. Discussion of Plant Manager Departure 

This item was discussed with item #7. 

 

7. Discussion and possible action on Management Proposals 

a. ESG Inc. 

The following were present from ESG Operations, Inc.: Daniel E. Groselle, Co-Founder and 

Principal; John Eddlemon, Senior Vice President and Partner; Don North, Operations Specialist; 

Danny Lyndall, Regional Manager; and Brice Doolittle, Project Manager. 

 

Mr. Eddlemon provided a brief history of ESG and advised that their review of the plant 

indicated there was a lot of work to be done.  He also distributed copies of their full proposal 

binders.  Mr. Groselle introduced everyone on the team.  Mr. Lyndall advised that he and Mr. 

North have visited the plant several times in the last couple of weeks and noticed areas that have 

not been maintained as needed.  He further advised that if certain items fail the plant will not be 

able to produce water which would lead to two counties going without water.  He noted safety 

issues and electrical issues and advised that ESG can operate the plant more economically in the 

4



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 4  

November 8, 2021   

 

long run.  Mr. Groselle advised that ESG will do an overall assessment of all assets and a risk 

assessment and will hire all of the existing SWA staff. 

 

After the ESG staff left, the board discussed the proposal.  Member Jefferson advised that he and 

staff had worked the ESG figures into the current SWA budget and that he had met with all 

employees to answer questions.  Christina Corn advised that she had spoken to her counterpart at 

EPWSA about ESG and received a good solid report.  Member Waddell reminded all that this is 

the biggest decision ever made and doesn't want to move too quickly and wants to make sure all 

possibilities are investigated.  Plant Manager Paracca advised that Christina and Clay can operate 

the plant in the interim using his proposed help, but the plan won't work for a long time without 

putting strains on the current staff which could result in the loss of some staff.  Member Waddell 

mentioned that incoming member Ed Walker should be involved in this decision.  He asked 

Member Jefferson if he could get another proposal and if there is a conflict of interest with ESG 

running both EPWSA and SWA.  Member Webster advised that this decision should not be 

delayed and in he is in favor of fast-tracking it. 

 

Motion to ask ESG to draft a contract for attorney review. 

Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

b. Southern Water Group 

The Southern Water Group proposal was reviewed.  Member Jefferson advised that it was just 

for a temporary basis. 

 

Motion to approve the hiring of a temporary employee for additional maintenance needs at 

$15.00 per hour; a bonus of 15% for Christina and a bonus of 20% for Clay for a 

temporary time frame to be determined and to be paid per payday. 

Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Waddell. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

Motion to accept Plant Manager Paracca's proposal for Vacation pay to allow one week to 

be carried over and to pay out the rest and his proposal for an advising fee of $40.00 per 

hour for 10 hours per month of over the phone and email support and $60.00 per hour plus 

mileage for emergency work that requires onsite service or assistance. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

8. Discussion and possible action on CFO transition 

Member Jefferson advised that Lorraine Neligan is working well and he didn't think Linda 

Zarkowski's services were needed anymore.  Ms. Zarkowski has resigned as of December 31, 

2021 so no action was taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

5



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 4  

November 8, 2021   

 

Executive Session 
9. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Executive Session was not needed. 

 

10. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Executive Session was not held. 

 

11. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Executive Session was not held. 

 

Reports II 
12. Plant Production Reports 

Plant Production reports are in the meeting package to review.  No action was taken. 

 

13. Financial Reports 

Financial reports are in the meeting package to review.  No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
14. Next Meeting - January 10, 2022 

The next meeting is scheduled for January 10, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 

  

15. Adjournment 

Chairman Brown adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:42 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Robert Brown 

Clerk        Chairman 

 

6



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3  

December 6, 2021   

 

 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Monday, December 6, 2021 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, December 6, 2021 at approximately 5:00 PM at 

the Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Robert Brown 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Tommy Jefferson 

Member David Waddell 

Member Billy Webster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Andrew Paracca 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

2022 Incoming Member Ed Walker 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Called Meeting 
2. 2022 Budget Amendment and Capital Improvement Budget 

Motion that Budget Amendment presented by Christina that incorporates the ESG 

proposal be approved subject to the ESG proposal being approved with $37,000 shortfall 

being covered by contingency. 

Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sinclair Water 

7



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3  

December 6, 2021   

 

Motion that the following Capital Improvements be approved in principal to start the 

process of getting these items done to include final costs approval by Members Hall and 

Webster:  

 GE Spare Parts up to $10,000 to order and replace as needed 

 Security System Upgrade up to $15,000 

 Kemio basic test kit up to $2,200 

 Swan Turbidimeter (one recent replacement, order two more) up to $10,000 

 CL-17s (order two) up to $12,00 plus PH Probe up to $1,500 

 Roofing (get current quotes and determine time schedules) up to $110,000 

 Painting up to $65,000 for removal (use screening during the removal and repaint) 

and repainting 

 Scada Upgrades up to $30,000 for system 

 Chemical Pump Redundancy up to $5,000 (spare Flouride pump, spare Phosphate 

pump, Chlorine Dioxide pumps) 

 CLO2 Reactor Replacement up to $10,000 

Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Webster. 

 

Motion amended to make final costs approval by the SWA Board instead of just Members 

Hall and Webster. 

Amended Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Waddell. 

Voting Yea for motion as amended: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, 

Member Waddell, Member Webster 

 

Motion to move $275,000 from the Fund Balance (presently $374,000) to Capital Budget. 

(After payment of all of the above, still leaves $375,000 in Capital Budget and Operating 

Reserve of over $200,000 needed to cover match for grant, and still have over $100,000 in 

Repair and Replacement Budget.) 

Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

Motion to assess Baldwin County and Putnam County a one time capital improvement sum 

of $250,000 each, payable on or before June 1, 2022 to be deposited in the Capital Budget 

account. 

Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

3. Discuss and Act on Management and Operations Proposals 

Member Hall discussed the proposal from J & T Environmental Services, Inc. and advised that 

he talked to other companies who didn't submit proposals. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the ESG Agreement for Operation of the plant. 

Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 
 

 

 

8



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3  

December 6, 2021   

 

4. Chairman’s Remarks 

Chairman Brown apologized that his business and personal life kept him from being as involved 

in the plant management research and expressed appreciation to the board for the good job they 

did. 

 

Closing 
5. Adjournment 

Chairman Brown adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Robert Brown 

Clerk        Chairman 

 

9



File Attachments for Item:

4. Operations Report presented by ESG, Inc.

10



11



File Attachments for Item:

7. Approval of Resolution to Terminate 401 and 457 Contribution Plan

12



RESOLUTION TO TERMINATE THE ACCG 401(a) DEFINED 
CONTRIBUTION PLAN AND THE ACCG 457(B) DEFERRED 

COMPENSATION PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF 
SINCLAIR WATER AUTHORITY 

 
WHEREAS, the Sinclair Water Authority (the “Employer”) by and through its Board of Directors, has 

previously adopted the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan for 

Sinclair Water Authority Employees (the “401(a) Plan”) and the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 

457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan for Sinclair Water Authority Employees (the “457(b) Plan”), both through 

Adoption Agreements effective as of September 1, 2015;  

WHEREAS, Section 13.02 of the 401(a) Plan and Section 11.02 of the 457(b) Plan allow the Employer 

to terminate the respective plans at any time; 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to terminate the 401(a) Plan and the 457(b) Plan on account of the 

Employer’s having terminated the employment of all of the active participants in such plans in connection with 

its execution of a management agreement with an outside contractor;  

NOW THEREFORE, the Sinclair Water Authority Board of Directors hereby resolves as follows: 

RESOLVED that the Board hereby terminates the 401(a) Plan and the 457(b) Plan as of the close of 

business on January 11, 2022, except that any contributions attributable to service provided or compensation 

payable for employment on or before such date shall nevertheless be contributed to the Plan in the ordinary 

course of business, but in no event later than March 31, 2022; 

FURTHER RESOLVED that each Participant in the 401(a) Plan who has an unvested interest in the 

401(a) Plan that has not yet been forfeited shall be 100 percent vested in his or her Account under such plan as 

of January 11, 2022; 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of the Board of Directors is hereby authorized, empowered, 

and directed to take all further actions and to execute all documents necessary to implement these resolutions, 

to provide for the orderly distribution or transfer of the Participants’ Accounts under the Plan and to direct the 

Third Party Administrator for each Plan to wind up the Plans’ affairs in accordance with the respective Plan 

documents. 

This _____ day of _______________, 2022. 

SINCLAIR WATER AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

By:      

 Chair, Sinclair Water Authority Board of Directors 

 

Date:      

 

Attest: 

 

By:      

 Witness 

 

Date:  _______________________________________________ 

13



File Attachments for Item:

8. Plant Production Reports

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



File Attachments for Item:

9. Financial Reports

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41


	Top
	Item #3.	2022-01-10 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 2021-11-08 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 2021-12-06 SWA Called Meeting Minutes

	Item #4.	2022-01-10 SWA Operations
	Operations Report 011022

	Item #7.	2022-01-10 SWA 401-457
	Sinclair WA-r-terminate 457(b) and 401(a) plans

	Item #8.	2022-01-10 SWA Plant Report
	Plant Production Report 011022

	Item #9.	2022-01-10 SWA Financials
	Financial Reports 011022

	Bottom

